
LE SUEUR COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS
MEETING AGENDA

COMMISSION CHAMBERS
September 15, 2015

1. 9:00 am Agenda and Consent Agenda
a. RE: September 1, 2015 Minutes and Summary Minutes
b. RE: CD #36 Repair Request
c. RE: CD #68 Repair Request

2. 9:05 am Claims (10 min)

3. 9:15 am Human Services (1 hour)

4. 10:00 am Set 2016 Preliminary Levy (10 min)

5. 10:10 am Jim McMillen, Maintenance (10 min)
a. RE: Security Cameras
b. RE: Smart TV at Information Desk

6. 10:20 am Justin Lutterman, GIS (20 min)
a. RE: Implementation and Training of new GIS software
b. RE: Pictometry Contract (Aerial Imagery)

7. 10:40 am Mike Schultz (10 min)
a. RE: Gravel Tax Project

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 9/15/2015 Page 1 / 67



8. 10:50 am John Bruender (10 min)
a. RE: German-Jefferson Ordinance

9. 11:00 am Human Resources (10 min)

10. 11:10 am Kathy Brockway, PZ Administrator (5 minutes)
a. Request for Action 3- CUP's, Seely, Helmstetter and Solheid

11. 11:15 am Darrell Pettis, Administrator
a. RE: HSIP Projects
b. RE: Library Budget
c. RE: Nicollet County Grand Opening Invite

12. 11:00 am BKV Work Session following Board Meeting

13. Future Meetings

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 9/15/2015 Page 2 / 67



Le Sueur County, MN
Tuesday, September 15, 2015

Board Meeting

Item 1

9:00 am Agenda and Consent Agenda

RE: September 1, 2015 Minutes and Summary Minutes

RE: CD #36 Repair Request

RE: CD #68 Repair Request

Staff Contact: 

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 9/15/2015 Page 3 / 67



Minutes of Le Sueur County Board of Commissioners Meeting
September 1, 2015

The Le Sueur County Board of Commissioners met in regular session on Tuesday, September 1, 
2015 at 9:00 a.m. in the Courthouse at Le Center, Minnesota.  Those members present were: 
Steve Rohlfing, Lance Wetzel, Dave Gliszinski, John King and Joe Connolly. Darrell Pettis and 
Brent Christian were also present. 

On motion by Connolly, seconded by Rohlfing and unanimously approved, the Board approved 
the agenda for the business of the day.

On motion by Gliszinski, seconded by King and unanimously approved, the Board approved the 
consent agenda:

● Approved the August 25, 2015 County Board Minutes and Summary Minutes

On motion by King, seconded by Gliszinski and unanimously approved, the following cases and 
claims were approved:                                                                                                 
       Soc Serv:              $ 42,413.48       

Financial:             $ 22,480.82

Jim McMillen, Maintenance appeared before the Board with one item for consideration.

On motion by Rohlfing, seconded by Connolly and unanimously approved, the Board approved 
to move forward with the Human Services remodel. Jim will get a final architect draft and bids to 
present to the Board.

Darrell Pettis, Administrator/Engineer appeared before the Board with several items for 
discussion. 

At 10:00 a.m. the Board reconvened the County Ditch #58, Branch #2 Public Hearing.

Chuck Brandel, Engineer with I&S Group presented findings from further scoping of the tile 
system as instructed at the July 16, 2015 hearing.

John Kolb, Attorney with Rinke Noonan presented background information, and was available to 
answer questions.

There were no public comments.

On motion by Rohlfing, seconded by Connolly and unanimously approved, the Board approved 
to close the Public Hearing at 10:40 a.m.

At a hearing on the repair of Branch 2 or Le Sueur County Ditch (LCD) 58, on May 19, 2015, 
recessed and continued to June 16, 2015, further recessed and continued to September 1, 2015 in 
the Commissioner’s room of the Le Sueur County Courthouse, 88 South Park Avenue, Le Center 
Minnesota, Commissioner Rohlfing made a motion to adopt the following Findings and Order:

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 9/15/2015 Page 4 / 67



WHEREAS, the Le Sueur County Board of Commissioners, Drainage Authority for LCD 58, 
upon concerns expressed by owners of property benefited by the drainage system in the vicinity 
of Branch 2 of LCD 58, directed an inspection of a portion of the drainage system and 
preparation of a condition report along with recommendations for repair, if necessary to restore 
the drainage system as nearly as practicable to the same hydraulic capacity as originally 
constructed and subsequently improved; and

WHEREAS, Branch 2 of LCD 58 consists of buried tile and a shallow swale on the same 
alignment; and

WHEREAS, the inspection was completed and the consulting engineer reported that Branch 2 of 
LCD 58 is failing and in need of repair; and

WHEREAS, in his initial report, the consulting engineer presented two options for repair that 
would restore the hydraulic capacity of the system and protect the system from further 
deterioration; and

WHEREAS, the Board, after making findings regarding the condition of the drainage system 
and the need for its repair, directed that the engineer evaluate a third repair option more closely 
following the original alignment of the drainage system; and

WHERAS, the engineer filed a revised repair report dated April 13, 2015, detailing three repair 
options for the drainage system; and

WHEREAS, on June 10, 2015, the engineer submitted a repair report amendment detailing a 
fourth repair option; and

WHEREAS, at its continued hearing on June 16, 2015, the Board directed that the extent of 
Branch 2 be televised to determine the extent of deterioration and to further evaluate the 
feasibility of the various recommended repair options; and

WHEREAS, the engineer issued a second amendment to his repair report after considering the 
results of the televised investigation of Branch 2. Based on his further review, the engineer 
reiterated his repair alternative recommendation in the first amendment to repair report; and

WHEREAS, the four alternatives presented are feasible and consistent with the statutory 
definition of repair found in statutes section 103E.701 which includes restoring “all or a part of a 
drainage system as nearly as practicable to the same hydraulic capacity as originally constructed” 
and “realignment to original construction if necessary to restore the effectiveness of the drainage 
system;” and

WHEREAS, the Board noticed and held a hearing on the engineer’s repair report in order to 
take public comment regarding the repair alternatives, including the cost and functionality of the 
repair alternatives; and

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 9/15/2015 Page 5 / 67



WHEREAS, the engineer recommends repair option four, as detailed in the first repair report 
amendment. The engineer’s recommendation is based on efficient restoration of drainage 
function, cost, protection of the drainage system and low, long term repair and maintenance 
costs; and

WHEREAS, the public concerns expressed at the hearing indicated a public preference for 
lower cost, increased functionality and long term protection of the function of the drainage 
system; and

WHEREAS, the public comments and the Board’s analysis of the alternatives provided by the 
engineer lead the Board to conclude that the engineer’s recommended alternative 4 ($161,443), 
though not the least expensive alternative (alternative 1, $148,274; alternative 2 ($183,950); and 
alternative 3, $154,816), will best provide the protection that is desired for the tile, accessibility 
required by existing private drainage tile, and restoration of hydraulic capacity; and

WHEREAS, alternative 1 may cause interference with the function of private tile connecting 
with the drainage system from the east and will require the acquisition of additional right of way 
and damage payment, alternative 2 is the most expensive alternative and will require the 
acquisition of additional right of way and damage payment, and alternative 3 will result in a 
shallow laid tile that will likely be prone to future damage and increase maintenance costs; and

WHEREAS, the Board restates its findings that Branch 2 of LCD 58 is failing and in need of 
repair and the repair of Branch 2 of LCD 58 is necessary to restore the hydraulic efficiency of the 
system and to protect the system from further deterioration; and 

WHEREAS, the Board further finds, based on the repair report, the repair report amendments 
and the evidence presented, that the recommended repair is necessary for the best interests of the 
affected property owners.

THEREFORE, based upon findings above, the Board makes the following:

ORDER
1. That Branch 2 of LCD 58 be repaired according to the engineer’s recommended repair 

alternative 4 as indicated in the engineer’s repair report amendment dated June 10, 2015.
2. The engineer shall specify best management practices to protect the sole surface intake 

on Branch 2 of LCD 58 to include an intake structure and grass buffer.
3. The shallow swale that follows the alignment of the tile portion of Branch 2 of LCD 58 

shall be maintained as a grass waterway of at least 6 foot width.
4. That the engineer prepare plans and specifications for the repair and bid the project.
5. That the drainage authority authorizes the engineer and staff to proceed as provided in 

statutes sections 103E.501, et seq. and reserves to itself those actions required by the 
drainage code to be taken by the drainage authority.

6. That if a contract is awarded for the repair, the assessment for repair of Branch 2 of LCD 
58 be divided over a period of at least 2 years in order to satisfy the requirements of 
statutes section 103E.705, subd. 6 which limits annual repair assessments to an amount 
less than $100,000. 

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 9/15/2015 Page 6 / 67



The motion was seconded by Commissioner Gliszinski, and after discussion, the motion Passed 
and the findings and order were Adopted by a vote of 5 yes and 0 no.

Cindy Shaugnessy and Public Health staff presented the Public Health 2014 Annual Agency 
Evaluation.

On motion by Gliszinski, seconded by King and unanimously approved, the Board approved the 
following claims:

Warrant # Vendor Name Amount

37382 Aquatic Gardens & Landscaping Inc. $    4,096.64
37386 Bolton & Menk Inc. $    3,310.00
37393 Contech Engineered Solutions LLC $  11,225.79
37413 Loken’s Parking Lot Painting & Sweeping $    3,200.00
37425 Prairie Restorations Inc. $  29,250.00
37428 Regents of the University of MN $    2,031.75
37433 Simplexgrinnell $    9,870.50
37444 Waseca Co. Public Health $    2,288.40

57 Claims paid less than $2,000.00: $  19,650.62  
  8 Claims paid more than $2,000.00: $  65,273.08 
65 Total all claims paid: $  84,923.70

On motion by Gliszinski, seconded by King and unanimously approved, the Board adjourned 
until Tuesday, September 15, 2015 at 9:00 a.m.

ATTEST: _____________________________    _______________________________
          Le Sueur County Administrator   Le Sueur County Chairman

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 9/15/2015 Page 7 / 67



Summary Minutes of Le Sueur County Board of Commissioners Meeting, September 1, 2015
●This is only a summary publication per MN Statutes 375.12 and 331A.01 sub. 10.  The complete 
minutes are on file in the Le Sueur County Administrator’s Office at 88 S Park Ave. Le Center, MN and 
are available at www.co.le-sueur.mn.us. 
●The Le Sueur County Board of Commissioners met in regular session on Tuesday, September 1, 2015 at 
9:00 a.m. in the Courthouse at Le Center, Minnesota.  Those members present were: Steve Rohlfing, 
Lance Wetzel, Dave Gliszinski, John King and Joe Connolly. Darrell Pettis and Brent Christian were also 
present. 
●The Board approved the agenda for the business of the day. (Connolly-Rohlfing)
●The Board approved the consent agenda: (Gliszinski-King) Approved the August 25, 2015 County 
Board Minutes and Summary Minutes.
●The following cases and claims were approved: (King-Gliszinski)                                                                                              
Soc Serv: $ 42,413.48 and Financial: $ 22,480.82
●The Board approved to move forward with the Human Services remodel. (Rohlfing-Connolly) 
●At 10:00 a.m. the Board reconvened the County Ditch #58, Branch #2 Public Hearing. There were no 
public comments.
●The Board approved to close the Public Hearing at 10:40 a.m. (Rohlfing-Connolly)
● The Board approved the following: (Rohlfing-Gliszinski)

1. That Branch 2 of LCD 58 be repaired according to the engineer’s recommended repair alternative 
4 as indicated in the engineer’s repair report amendment dated June 10, 2015.

2. The engineer shall specify best management practices to protect the sole surface intake on Branch 
2 of LCD 58 to include an intake structure and grass buffer.

3. The shallow swale that follows the alignment of the tile portion of Branch 2 of LCD 58 shall be 
maintained as a grass waterway of at least 6 foot width.

4. That the engineer prepare plans and specifications for the repair and bid the project.
5. That the drainage authority authorizes the engineer and staff to proceed as provided in statutes 

sections 103E.501, et seq. and reserves to itself those actions required by the drainage code to be 
taken by the drainage authority.

6. That if a contract is awarded for the repair, the assessment for repair of Branch 2 of LCD 58 be 
divided over a period of at least 2 years in order to satisfy the requirements of statutes section 
103E.705, subd. 6 which limits annual repair assessments to an amount less than $100,000.

● The Board approved the following claims: (Gliszinski-King)
Warrant # Vendor Name Amount
37382 Aquatic Gardens & Landscaping Inc. $    4,096.64
37386 Bolton & Menk Inc. $    3,310.00
37393 Contech Engineered Solutions LLC $  11,225.79
37413 Loken’s Parking Lot Painting & Sweeping $    3,200.00
37425 Prairie Restorations Inc. $  29,250.00
37428 Regents of the University of MN $    2,031.75
37433 Simplexgrinnell $    9,870.50
37444 Waseca Co. Public Health $    2,288.40
57 Claims paid less than $2,000.00: $  19,650.62  
8 Claims paid more than $2,000.00: $  65,273.08 
65 Total all claims paid:$  84,923.70
● The Board adjourned until Tuesday, September 15, 2015 at 9:00 a.m. (Gliszinski-King)
ATTEST: Le Sueur County Administrator   Le Sueur County Chairman

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 9/15/2015 Page 8 / 67

http://www.co.le-sueur.mn.us/


Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 9/15/2015 Page 9 / 67



Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 9/15/2015 Page 10 / 67



Le Sueur County, MN
Tuesday, September 15, 2015

Board Meeting

Item 2

9:05 am Claims (10 min)

Staff Contact: 

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 9/15/2015 Page 11 / 67



Le Sueur County, MN
Tuesday, September 15, 2015

Board Meeting

Item 3

9:15 am Human Services (1 hour)

Staff Contact: 

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 9/15/2015 Page 12 / 67



Human Services Board Agenda
September 15th 2015 @ 9:05 a.m.

100- PRESENTATIONS:
110:  New Employee Introduction – Justin Coates

200- INFORMATIONAL ITEMS:

 210- Finance Graphs/Report;
 220- Income Maintenance/Child Support Graphs;                                 
 230- Family Services Graphs-
                    231- Social Services Team 

       232- Child Services Team
                   232.1- Out Of Home Placement Report
                   232.2- In-Home Family Therapy Report;
        233- Behavioral Health Team

300- BOARD APPROVAL ITEMS:

310 –  Commissioner’s Warrants

               

Department of Human Services
88 SOUTH PARK AVENUE          LE CENTER, MINNESOTA 56057-1646

507-357-2251          FAX 507-357-6122

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 9/15/2015 Page 13 / 67



Le Sueur County, MN
Tuesday, September 15, 2015

Board Meeting

Item 4

10:00 am Set 2016 Preliminary Levy (10 min)

Staff Contact: 

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 9/15/2015 Page 14 / 67



2016 Budgets -- Proposed
Department  Revenue  Expenditures Levy $ Needed

001 – Commissioners 15,120 286,340 271,220
011 – District Court 3,300 52,150 48,850
019 – Law Library ** 15,000 28,000 13,000
020 - Drug Court 0 145,389 145,389
039 – Land Rec Dept 66,000 166,349 100,349
040 – Finance 29,500 112,100 82,600
041 – License Bureau 109,440 111,064 1,624
043 – Machine Room 10,200 189,150 178,950
044 – Auditor/Treasurer 13,150 502,284 489,134
045 – Assessor 6,200 533,978 527,778
046 – Gen Govt 947,874 377,148 -570,726
047 – Remonumentation 0 36,800 36,800
049 - Human Resources 0 185,861 185,861
060 – Data Processing 200 770,554 770,354
061 – Election 1,350 54,100 52,750
062 – County Administrator 500 200,690 200,190
090 – Co Attorney 0 681,062 681,062
091 – Co Attorney Cont 0 11,000 11,000
100 – Co Recorder 195,000 296,623 101,623
101- Rec Tech Fund ** 62,000 128,340 66,340
110 – Maintenance 83,000 408,952 325,952
120 – Veterans Service 2,500 255,964 253,464
122 – Planning & Zoning 96,100 317,136 221,036
123 – HRA 0 10,025 10,025
124 – Public Health 1,878,008 2,215,481 337,473
126 – Sr Citizens 0 47,000 47,000
127 – Forfeit Tax 2,250 10,000 7,750
200 – Law Enforcement 193,420 1,830,245 1,636,825
201 – Crim Inv 0 357,096 357,096
202 – B & W 12,420 42,213 29,793
203 – Sheriff Cont #2 2,000 0 -2,000
204 – Sheriff Cont #1 0 2,000 2,000
205 – Coroner 0 36,000 36,000
208 – E911 County 2,000 11,864 9,864
209 – Tobacco Compl 2,500 0 -2,500
210 – Snowmobile Safety 4,000 3,380 -620
212 – E911 State 104,205 66,000 -38,205
214 – OHV/ATV 4,000 6,000 2,000
250 – Jail 38,000 1,711,830 1,673,830
251 – Probation 80,000 391,758 311,758
280 – Emergency Mgmnt 28,471 122,163 93,692
602- SWCD 102,659 319,610 216,951
603 – Ag Inspector 0 12,664 12,664
** use reserves
TOTAL 4,110,367 13,046,363 8,935,996

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 9/15/2015 Page 15 / 67



Department  Revenue  Expenditures Levy $ Needed

300 – R & B – Adm 10,975,011 680,699 -10,294,312
301 – R & B –Const 0 13,310,958 13,310,958
302 – R & B – Maint 0 2,758,340 2,758,340
303 – R & B – Shop 0 898,262 898,262
304 – R & B  - Bonds 4,029,473 429,554 -3,599,919
TOTAL 15,004,484 18,077,813 3,073,329

043 – Machine Room 17,200 17,200 0
426 – SCORE 105,938 105,938 0
427 – Solid Waste (Reserves) 232,900 209,944 -22,956
428 – Water Planning (Levy) 68,750 81,586 12,836
436 – Feedlot Grant 45,557 44,826 -731
438 – ISTS 23,600 18,600 -5,000
440 – State Shoreland Grt 4,918 4,918 0
443 – Wastewater Bd 2006B 1,200 1,200 0
450 - LCCMR So MN Lake 89,300 89,300 0
452-LSC Lower MN Proj 700 700 0
453-Aquatic Species Aid 158,000 158,000 0
454-FRST Lakes 166,400 166,400 0
455-Lake Volney Targeted Restoration 162,620 162,620 0
TOTAL 1,077,083 1,061,232 -15,851

Fund 30 – B & I  Dept 971 0 1,977,440 1,977,440

Fund 40 – Cap Imp 

Fund 02 - Victim Witness 80,200 83,462 3,262

111- Building 0 190,000 190,000
129-German/Jefferson 0 168,990 168,990
525 – Park 55,214 290,405 235,191
600 – County Fair 0 26,331 26,331
601 – Ext Services 4,375 188,403 184,028

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 9/15/2015 Page 16 / 67



PROPOSED 2016
RECAP OF EXPENDITURES

LE SUEUR COUNTY
                                                        

USE OF
FUND TAXES OTHER 

REVENUES
FUND BALANCE TOTAL

REVENUE 8,856,656 4,110,367 79,340 13,046,363
ROAD & BRIDGE 3,073,329 15,004,484 18,077,813

SS & PA 2,573,655 2,240,980 244,707 5,059,342
PA & GA 1,064,573 1,152,250 119,720 2,336,543

FAIR (600) 26,331 26,331
BUILDING (111) 190,000 190,000

EXT SERVICES (601) 184,028 4,375 188,403
PARK (525) 235,191 55,214 290,405

GERMAN/JEFFERSON(129) 168,990 168,990
BONDED INDEBT 1,977,440 1,977,440

WATER PLANNING 12,836 1,077,083 -28,687 1,061,232
VICTIM WITNESS 3,262 80,200 83,462

TOTAL 18,366,291 23,724,953 415,080 42,506,324

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 9/15/2015 Page 17 / 67



2016 PROPOSED LEVY

FUND                                         TAXES    PROGRAM AID        TOTAL      
Revenue 8,856,656 512,639 8,344,017
Road & Bridge 3,073,329 512,639 2,560,690
SS & PA 2,573,655 2,573,655
PA & GA 1,064,573 1,064,573
Fair 26,331 26,331
Building 190,000 190,000
Extension Services 184,028 184,028
Park 235,191 235,191
German/Jefferson 168,990 168,990
Bonded Indebtedness 1,977,440 1,977,440
Water Planning 12,836 12,836
Victim Witness 3,262 3,262

TOTAL 18,366,291 1,025,278 17,341,013

2016 PROPOSED LEVY   $  17,341,013

2015 FINAL LEVY         $  16,077,551

INCREASE IN LEVY        $   1,263,462 

INCREASE OF    7.9%        

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 9/15/2015 Page 18 / 67



Le Sueur County, MN
Tuesday, September 15, 2015

Board Meeting

Item 5

10:10 am Jim McMillen, Maintenance (10 min)

RE: Security Cameras

RE: Smart TV at Information Desk

Staff Contact: 

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 9/15/2015 Page 19 / 67



Le Sueur County, MN
Tuesday, September 15, 2015

Board Meeting

Item 6

10:20 am Justin Lutterman, GIS (20 min)

RE: Implementation and Training of new GIS software

RE: Pictometry Contract (Aerial Imagery)

Staff Contact: 

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 9/15/2015 Page 20 / 67



Le Sueur County, MN
Tuesday, September 15, 2015

Board Meeting

Item 7

10:40 am Mike Schultz (10 min)

RE: Gravel Tax Project

Staff Contact: 

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 9/15/2015 Page 21 / 67



Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 9/15/2015 Page 22 / 67



Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 9/15/2015 Page 23 / 67



Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 9/15/2015 Page 24 / 67



Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 9/15/2015 Page 25 / 67



Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 9/15/2015 Page 26 / 67



Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 9/15/2015 Page 27 / 67



Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 9/15/2015 Page 28 / 67



Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 9/15/2015 Page 29 / 67



Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 9/15/2015 Page 30 / 67



Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 9/15/2015 Page 31 / 67



Le Sueur County, MN
Tuesday, September 15, 2015

Board Meeting

Item 8

10:50 am John Bruender (10 min)

RE: German-Jefferson Ordinance

Staff Contact: 

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 9/15/2015 Page 32 / 67



Le Sueur County, MN
Tuesday, September 15, 2015

Board Meeting

Item 9

11:00 am Human Resources (10 min)

Staff Contact: 

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 9/15/2015 Page 33 / 67



Equal Opportunity Employer

HUMAN RESOURCES
AGENDA ITEMS

September 15, 2015

Recommendation to end employment with employee 1872, effective September 
4, 2015.

Recommendation to promote Tricia Christensen, full time Administrative 
Assistant II in Public Health to a full time Administrative Assistant III in Public 
Health, as a Grade 5, Step 3 at $17.30 per hour, effective September 21, 2015.

Recommendation to grant regular status to Kelly Wroe, full time Deputy Auditor-
Treasurer II – Motor Vehicle Specialist, in the Auditor-Treasurer Office, effective 
September 9, 2015.  Kelly has completed the six-month probationary period.  Judy 
Brown, Deputy Auditor-Treasurer III – Accounting Specialist/Motor Vehicle 
Supervisor, recommends granting regular status to Kelly.   

Recommendation to advertise for a part time Deputy Sheriff, as a Grade 10, Step 
1 at $21.55 per hour.  

Recommendation to post and advertise for a full time Deputy Auditor-Treasurer II 
– Motor Vehicle Specialist, in the Auditor-Treasurer Office, as a Grade 6, Step 1 at 
$17.07 per hour.  

Recommendation to accept the resignation request from Shannon Miller, full time 
Agency Social Worker in Human Services, effective September 25, 2015.  Shannon 
has been an employee with Le Sueur County since July 2012.

Recommendation to post and request the merit list for a full time Agency Social 
Worker, in Human Services, as a Grade 10, Step 1 at $21.55 per hour.

Human Resources 
88 SOUTH PARK AVENUE  LE CENTER, MINNESOTA 56057

 Telephone: 507-357-8517  Fax: 507-357-8607
Cindy Westerhouse – Human Resources Director

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 9/15/2015 Page 34 / 67



Le Sueur County, MN
Tuesday, September 15, 2015

Board Meeting

Item 10

11:10 am Kathy Brockway, PZ Administrator (5 minutes)

Request for Action 3- CUP's, Seely, Helmstetter and Solheid

Staff Contact: 

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 9/15/2015 Page 35 / 67



LE SUEUR COUNTY PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION
September 15, 2015

TO: LE SUEUR COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS

FROM: LE SUEUR COUNTY PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION

SUBJECT: “REQUEST FOR ACTION”

The Planning Commission recommends your action on the following items:

ITEM #1: CHRISTOPHER SEELY, CLEVELAND, MN, (APPLICANT/OWNER):  Request that the 
County grant a Conditional Use Permit to allow grading, excavating, and filling of 500 cubic yards of material outside 
the shore impact zone in a Special Protection “SP” District, on a Natural Environment “NE” lake, Lake Henry.  
Property is located in the Government Lot 1, Section 34, Cleveland Township & Government Lot 3, Section 3, 
Cleveland Township.  

Based on the information submitted by the applicant, as required by the Le Sueur County Zoning 
Ordinance, the Planning Commission developed the following findings for this request:  

Therefore, the Planning Commission recommends approval of the application  as written.

ITEM #2: STEVEN HELMSTETTER, KASOTA, MN, (APPLICANT/OWNER):  Request that the 
County grant a Conditional Use Permit to allow grading, excavating, and filling of 1439 cubic yards of material in a 
Urban/Rural Residential “R1” District.  Property is located in the NE 1/4 SW 1/4, Section 9, Kasota Township.  

Based on the information submitted by the applicant, as required by the Le Sueur County Zoning 
Ordinance, the Planning Commission developed the following findings for this request:  

Therefore, the Planning Commission recommends approval of the application with the following 
conditions:

1. Work in the bluff should be restricted to remain within the driving path that has been used to 
access the lowland area

2. The trench must be filled in immediately once the pipes have been installed.  
3. The disturbed soils within the trench should be compacted to reduce the chances of washout.  
4. Silt fence needs to be correctly installed (staked and keyed into the ground) to protect the 

wetland and sloped areas should be covered with erosion control blanket.  
5. Once work is done, the entire area should be seeded with native vegetation to stabilize the area 

and reduce colonization from noxious weeds.  
6. Special attention should be payed to the weather forecast to reduce the chance of washout while 

work is done within the bluff.   

ITEM #3: ERIC SOLHEID CONSTRUCTION, NEW PRAGUE, MN, (APPLICANT); JOEL & 
DEBBIE SOLHEID, NEW PRAGUE, MN, (OWNER):  Request that the County grant a Conditional Use Permit to 
allow grading, excavating, and filling of 330 cubic yards of material outside the shore impact zone in a Special 
Protection “SP” District, on an un-named stream.  Property is located in the W 1/2 NW 1/4, Section 3, Derrynane 
Township.  

Based on the information submitted by the applicant, as required by the Le Sueur County Zoning 
Ordinance, the Planning Commission developed the following findings for this request:  

Therefore, the Planning Commission recommends approval of the application as written.

ACTION: ITEM #1:___________________________

ITEM #2:___________________________

ITEM #3:___________________________

DATE:_______________________________________________

COUNTY ADMINISTRATOR’S SIGNATURE:______________________________

1

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 9/15/2015 Page 36 / 67



FINDINGS OF FACT

WHEREAS,  CHRISTOPHER SEELY has applied for a Conditional Use Permit  to allow grading, 
excavating, and filling of 500 cubic yards of material outside the shore impact zone in a Special Protection “SP” 
District, on a Natural Environment “NE” lake, Lake Henry.  Property is located in the Government Lot 1, Section 34, 
Cleveland Township & Government Lot 3, Section 3, Cleveland Township.  

WHEREAS, the Le Sueur County Planning and Zoning Commission held on public hearing on  
September 10, 2015, in order to hear public testimony from the applicants as well as interested parties 
pertaining to and as provided by the Zoning Ordinance of Le Sueur County.

WHEREAS, the Le Sueur County Planning and Zoning Commission, acting as an advisory board to the Le 
Sueur County Board of Commissioners recommends denial/approval of the application due to the following 
findings:

1. The conditional use will not be injurious to the use and enjoyment of other property in the 
immediate vicinity for the purposes already permitted, nor substantially diminishes and 
impairs property values within the immediate vicinity. 

2. The establishment of the conditional use will not impede the normal and orderly 
development and improvement of surrounding vacant property for uses predominant in the 
area.

3. Adequate utilities, access roads, drainage and other facilities are being provided.

4. Adequate measures will be taken to prevent and control offensive odor, fumes, dust, noise 
and vibration, so that none of these will constitute a nuisance, and to control lighted signs 
and other lights in such a manner that no disturbance to neighboring properties will result.

WHEREAS, On September 15, 2015 at their regularly scheduled meeting, the Le Sueur County Board of 
Commissioners APPROVED/DENIED the Conditional Use Permit application as requested by 
CHRISTOPHER SEELY.

NOW, THEREFORE, IT IS HEREBY RESOLVED, the following Findings of Fact were adopted at the 
September 15, 2015, Le Sueur County Board meeting in order to protect the public health, safety and 
general welfare of the citizens of Le Sueur County.

1. The conditional use will not be injurious to the use and enjoyment of other property in the 
immediate vicinity for the purposes already permitted, nor substantially diminishes and 
impairs property values within the immediate vicinity. 

2. The establishment of the conditional use will not impede the normal and orderly 
development and improvement of surrounding vacant property for uses predominant in the 
area.

3. Adequate utilities, access roads, drainage and other facilities have been or are being 
provided.

4. Adequate measures have been or will be taken to prevent and control offensive odor, fumes, 
dust, noise and vibration, so that none of these will constitute a nuisance, and to control 
lighted signs and other lights in such a manner that no disturbance to neighboring 
properties will result.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, by the Le Sueur County Board of Commissioners that based on the 
above Findings of Fact, a Conditional Use Permit to allow grading, excavating, and filling of 500 cubic yards of 
material outside the shore impact zone in a Special Protection “SP” District, on a Natural Environment “NE” lake, 
Lake Henry.  Property is located in the Government Lot 1, Section 34, Cleveland Township & Government Lot 3, 
Section 3, Cleveland Township, is APPROVED/DENIED. 

2

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 9/15/2015 Page 37 / 67



ATTEST:

Lance Wetzel, Chairman, Le Sueur County Board of Commissioners.

Darrell Pettis, Le Sueur County Administrator

DATE:_____________________________

3

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 9/15/2015 Page 38 / 67



FINDINGS OF FACT

WHEREAS,   STEVEN HELMSTETTER, KASOTA, MN, (APPLICANT/OWNER): has applied for 
a Conditional Use Permit to allow grading, excavating, and filling of 1439 cubic yards of material in a 
Urban/Rural Residential “R1” District.  Property is located in the NE 1/4 SW 1/4, Section 9, Kasota 
Township.  
                      
WHEREAS, the Le Sueur County Planning and Zoning Commission held on public hearing on  
September 10, 2015, in order to hear public testimony from the applicants as well as interested parties 
pertaining to and as provided by the Zoning Ordinance of Le Sueur County.

WHEREAS, the Le Sueur County Planning and Zoning Commission, acting as an advisory board to the Le 
Sueur County Board of Commissioners recommends denial/approval of the application due to the following 
findings:

1. The conditional use will not be injurious to the use and enjoyment of other property in the 
immediate vicinity for the purposes already permitted, nor substantially diminishes and 
impairs property values within the immediate vicinity. 

2. The establishment of the conditional use will not impede the normal and orderly 
development and improvement of surrounding vacant property for uses predominant in the 
area.

3. Adequate utilities, access roads, drainage and other facilities are being provided.

4. Adequate measures will be taken to prevent and control offensive odor, fumes, dust, noise 
and vibration, so that none of these will constitute a nuisance, and to control lighted signs 
and other lights in such a manner that no disturbance to neighboring properties will result.

WHEREAS, On September 15, 2015, at their regularly scheduled meeting, the Le Sueur County Board of 
Commissioners approved/denied the Conditional Use Permit application as requested by the Stevan 
Helmstetter.

NOW, THEREFORE, IT IS HEREBY RESOLVED, the following Findings of Fact were adopted at the 
September 15, 2015 Le Sueur County Board meeting in order to protect the public health, safety and 
general welfare of the citizens of Le Sueur County.

1. With the imposition of appropriate conditions as stated, the conditional use will not be 
injurious to the use and enjoyment of other property in the immediate vicinity for the 
purposes already permitted, nor substantially diminishes and impairs property values within 
the immediate vicinity. 

2. With the imposition of appropriate conditions as stated, the establishment of the conditional 
use will not impede the normal and orderly development and improvement of surrounding 
vacant property for uses predominant in the area.

3. With the imposition of appropriate conditions as stated, adequate utilities, access roads, 
drainage and other facilities are being provided.

4. With the imposition of appropriate conditions as stated, adequate measures will be taken to 
prevent and control offensive odor, fumes, dust, noise and vibration, so that none of these 
will constitute a nuisance, and to control lighted signs and other lights in such a manner that 
no disturbance to neighboring properties will result.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, by the Le Sueur County Board of Commissioners that based on the 
above Findings of Fact, a Conditional Use Permit to allow grading, excavating, and filling of 1439 cubic yards of 
material in an Urban/Rural Residential “R1” District.  Property is located in the NE 1/4 SW 1/4, Section 9, Kasota 
Township, is approved/denied. 

4

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 9/15/2015 Page 39 / 67



ATTEST:

Lance Wetzel, Chairman, Le Sueur County Board of Commissioners.

Darrell Pettis, Le Sueur County Administrator

DATE:_____________________________

5

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 9/15/2015 Page 40 / 67



FINDINGS OF FACT

WHEREAS,     ERIC SOLHEID CONSTRUCTION, NEW PRAGUE, MN, (APPLICANT); JOEL & 
DEBBIE SOLHEID, NEW PRAGUE, MN, (OWNER):  has applied for a Conditional Use Permit to 
allow grading, excavating, and filling of 330 cubic yards of material outside the shore impact zone in a 
Special Protection “SP” District, on an un-named stream.  Property is located in the W 1/2 NW 1/4, Section 
3, Derrynane Township.  

WHEREAS, the Le Sueur County Planning and Zoning Commission held on public hearing on  
September 10,2015, in order to hear public testimony from the applicants as well as interested parties 
pertaining to and as provided by the Zoning Ordinance of Le Sueur County.

WHEREAS, the Le Sueur County Planning and Zoning Commission, acting as an advisory board to the Le 
Sueur County Board of Commissioners recommends denial/approval of the application due to the following 
findings:

1. The conditional use will not be injurious to the use and enjoyment of other property in the 
immediate vicinity for the purposes already permitted, nor substantially diminishes and 
impairs property values within the immediate vicinity. 

2. The establishment of the conditional use will not impede the normal and orderly 
development and improvement of surrounding vacant property for uses predominant in the 
area.

3. Adequate utilities, access roads, drainage and other facilities are being provided.

4. Adequate measures will be taken to prevent and control offensive odor, fumes, dust, noise 
and vibration, so that none of these will constitute a nuisance, and to control lighted signs 
and other lights in such a manner that no disturbance to neighboring properties will result.

WHEREAS, On September 15,2015, at their regularly scheduled meeting, the Le Sueur County Board of 
Commissioners APPROVED/DENIED the Conditional Use Permit application as requested by ERIC 
SOLHEID CONSTRUCTION, NEW PRAGUE, MN, (APPLICANT); JOEL & DEBBIE SOLHEID, NEW 
PRAGUE, MN, (OWNER):  

NOW, THEREFORE, IT IS HEREBY RESOLVED, the following Findings of Fact were adopted at the 
September 15, 2015 Le Sueur County Board meeting in order to protect the public health, safety and 
general welfare of the citizens of Le Sueur County.

1. The conditional use will not be injurious to the use and enjoyment of other property in the 
immediate vicinity for the purposes already permitted, nor substantially diminishes and 
impairs property values within the immediate vicinity. 

2. The establishment of the conditional use will not impede the normal and orderly 
development and improvement of surrounding vacant property for uses predominant in the 
area.

3. Adequate utilities, access roads, drainage and other facilities are being provided.

4. Adequate measures will be taken to prevent and control offensive odor, fumes, dust, noise 
and vibration, so that none of these will constitute a nuisance, and to control lighted signs 
and other lights in such a manner that no disturbance to neighboring properties will result.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, by the Le Sueur County Board of Commissioners that based on the 
above Findings of Fact, a Conditional Use Permit to allow grading, excavating, and filling of 330 cubic yards of 
material outside the shore impact zone in a Special Protection “SP” District, on an un-named stream.  Property is 
located in the W 1/2 NW 1/4, Section 3, Derrynane Township, is APPROVED/DENIED.

6

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 9/15/2015 Page 41 / 67



ATTEST:

Lance Wetzel, Chairman, Le Sueur County Board of Commissioners.

Darrell Pettis, Le Sueur County Administrator

DATE:_____________________________

7

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 9/15/2015 Page 42 / 67



LE SUEUR COUNTY PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION
88 SOUTH PARK AVE.

LE CENTER, MINNESOTA 56057
September 10, 2015

MEMBERS PRESENT: Don Reak, Don Rynda, Chuck Retka, Shirley Katzenmeyer, Steve Olson, Doug 
Krenik, Pam Tietz

MEMBERS ABSENT: Betty Bruzek, Al Gehrke, Jeanne Doheny
OTHERS PRESENT: Kathy Brockway, Commissioner Connolly

The meeting was called to order at 7:00 PM by Vice-Chairperson, Steve Olson.

ITEM #1: CHRISTOPHER SEELY, CLEVELAND, MN, (APPLICANT/OWNER):  Request that the 
County grant a Conditional Use Permit to allow grading, excavating, and filling of 500 cubic yards of material outside 
the shore impact zone in a Special Protection “SP” District, on a Natural Environment “NE” lake, Lake Henry. 
Property is located in the Government Lot 1, Section 34, Cleveland Township & Government Lot 3, Section 3, 
Cleveland Township.  

Kathy Brockway presented power point presentation. Christopher Seely was present for application.  

TOWNSHIP: Notified Cleveland Township per the application process. DNR: No comments     LETTERS:  Joshua 
Mankowski, LSC Resource Specialist (see file)

PUBLIC COMMENT:  none

Discussion was held regarding: removal of 150 cubic yards of material and replace with 350 cubic yards of material to 
change the elevation of the shed site, variance granted in July of 2015 for the placement of the shed, no change in the 
drainage of the lot, additional screening between the shed and lake per variance approval, required setback from the 
lake is 250 feet, shed will be 192 feet, gradual slope to the bluff. 

Findings by majority roll call vote: 
1. The conditional use will not be injurious to the use and enjoyment of other property in the immediate 

vicinity for the purposes already permitted, nor substantially diminishes and impairs property values 
within the immediate vicinity. 

2. The establishment of the conditional use will not impede the normal and orderly development and 
improvement of surrounding vacant property for uses predominant in the area.

3. Adequate utilities, access roads, drainage and other facilities are being provided.
4. Adequate measures will be taken to prevent and control offensive odor, fumes, dust, noise and 

vibration, so that none of these will constitute a nuisance, and to control lighted signs and other lights 
in such a manner that no disturbance to neighboring properties will result.

Motion was made by Doug Krenik to approve the application as presented. Seconded by Don Rynda.  Motion 
approved.  Motion carried.

ITEM #2: STEVAN HELMSTETTER, KASOTA, MN, (APPLICANT/OWNER):  Request that the 
County grant a Conditional Use Permit to allow grading, excavating, and filling of 1439 cubic yards of material in an 
Urban/Rural Residential “R1” District.  Property is located in the NE 1/4 SW 1/4, Section 9, Kasota Township.  

Kathy Brockway presented power point presentation. Stevan Helmstetter was present for application.  

TOWNSHIP:  Notified Joe Kienlen, Kasota Township Board member during the application process. DNR:  No 
comments.    LETTERS:  Joshua Mankowski, LSC Resource Specialist (see file)

PUBLIC COMMENT:  none

Discussion was held regarding: Erosion control measures, time frame for the project from start to finish, approximately 
3 days, depending on weather, placement of piping within the bluff, existing pathway within the bluff, no maintenance 
required, concerns with vegetation cover this late in the season, line connecting the bed to the home will be 
approximately 3 feet wide trench, 6 feet deep through the bluff, geothermal heats and cools, K & K Plumbing of St. 
Peter will do the installation.

Findings by majority roll call vote: 
1. The conditional use will not be injurious to the use and enjoyment of other property in the immediate 

vicinity for the purposes already permitted, nor substantially diminishes and impairs property values 
within the immediate vicinity. 

2. The establishment of the conditional use will not impede the normal and orderly development and 

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 9/15/2015 Page 43 / 67



improvement of surrounding vacant property for uses predominant in the area.
3. Adequate utilities, access roads, drainage and other facilities are being provided.
4. Adequate measures will be taken to prevent and control offensive odor, fumes, dust, noise and vibration, 

so that none of these will constitute a nuisance, and to control lighted signs and other lights in such a 
manner that no disturbance to neighboring properties will result.

Motion was made by Don Reak to approve the application with the conditions; 
1. Work in the bluff should be restricted to remain within the driving path that has been used to 

access the lowland area
2. The trench must be filled in immediately once the pipes have been installed.  
3. The disturbed soils within the trench should be compacted to reduce the chances of washout.  
4. Silt fence needs to be correctly installed (staked and keyed into the ground) to protect the 

wetland and sloped areas should be covered with erosion control blanket.  
5. Once work is done, the entire area should be seeded with native vegetation to stabilize the area 

and reduce colonization from noxious weeds.  
6. Special attention should be payed to the weather forecast to reduce the chance of washout while 

work is done within the bluff.   
 Seconded by Chuck Retka.  Motion approved.  Motion carried.

ITEM #3:    ERIC SOLHEID CONSTRUCTION, NEW PRAGUE, MN, (APPLICANT); JOEL & DEBBIE 
SOLHEID, NEW PRAGUE, MN, (OWNER):  Request that the County grant a Conditional Use Permit to allow 
grading, excavating, and filling of 330 cubic yards of material outside the shore impact zone in a Special Protection 
“SP” District, on an un-named stream.  Property is located in the W 1/2 NW 1/4, Section 3, Derrynane Township.  

Kathy Brockway presented power point presentation.  Eric Solheid was present for application.  

TOWNSHIP: Notified Derrynane Township board member per the application process.  DNR:  No comments     
LETTERS:  Joshua Mankowski, LSC Resource Specialist (see file)

PUBLIC COMMENT:  none

Discussion was held regarding: removing existing shed and replacing with a new shed, change elevation in order to 
meet the Regulatory Flood Protection Elevation, improvement on property, storage shed.

Findings by majority roll call vote: 
1. The conditional use will not be injurious to the use and enjoyment of other property in the immediate 

vicinity for the purposes already permitted, nor substantially diminishes and impairs property values 
within the immediate vicinity. 

2. The establishment of the conditional use will not impede the normal and orderly development and 
improvement of surrounding vacant property for uses predominant in the area.

3. Adequate utilities, access roads, drainage and other facilities are being provided.
4. Adequate measures have been to prevent and control offensive odor, fumes, dust, noise and vibration, 

so that none of these will constitute a nuisance, and to control lighted signs and other lights in such a 
manner that no disturbance to neighboring properties will result.

Motion was made by Pam Tietz to approve the application as presented.  Seconded by Don Rynda.  Motion approved.  
Motion carried.

Motion was made by Don Reak to approve the minutes from the August 13, 2015 meeting by Seconded by Shirley 
Katzenmeyer.  Motion approved.  Motion carried.

Motion to adjourn meeting by Chuck Retka.  Seconded by Don Reak.  Motion approved.  Motion carried.
Meeting Adjourned.

Shirley Katzenmeyer
Kathy Brockway
Respectfully submitted,

Tape of meeting is on file in the Le Sueur County Environmental Services Office

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 9/15/2015 Page 44 / 67



Le Sueur County, MN
Tuesday, September 15, 2015

Board Meeting

Item 11

11:15 am Darrell Pettis, Administrator

RE: HSIP Projects

RE: Library Budget

RE: Nicollet County Grand Opening Invite

Staff Contact: 

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 9/15/2015 Page 45 / 67



Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 9/15/2015 Page 46 / 67



Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 9/15/2015 Page 47 / 67



Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 9/15/2015 Page 48 / 67



Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 9/15/2015 Page 49 / 67



Please Join Us in Celebrating the Ribbon Cutting 
and Grand Opening of the  

Nicollet County Health and Human Services Building 
622 S. Front Street, St. Peter 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

    Date:  Tuesday, October 13, 2015 
 
Ribbon Cutting:  1 p.m. 
 
   Open House:  1 p.m. – 7 p.m. 
 

 

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 9/15/2015 Page 50 / 67



Le Sueur County, MN
Tuesday, September 15, 2015

Board Meeting

Item 12

11:00 am BKV Work Session following Board Meeting

Staff Contact: 

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 9/15/2015 Page 51 / 67



09/15/2015 Project #: 1136.11

Le Sueur County Facility Master Plan Study
Facilities Study

1

LE SUEUR-
Public Works Facility

MONTGOMERY-
Public Works Facility

LE CENTER-
Public Works Facility, 
Government Services,
LEC/Jail

WATERVILLE-
Public Works Facility

CLEVELAND-
Public Works Facility

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 9/15/2015 Page 52 / 67



09/15/2015 Project #: 1136.11

Le Sueur County Facility Master Plan Study
Facilities Study

2
Public Works- Plow Routes

Le Center
5

Montgomery
3

Le Sueur
3

Cleveland
4

Waterville
3

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 9/15/2015 Page 53 / 67



09/15/2015 Project #: 1136.11

Le Sueur County Facility Master Plan Study
Facilities Study

3

Central vs. Decentral

Pros:
 1. Simpler management- staff reporting to a single place
 2. Better opportunity to share/shed work
 3. Better opportunity to share vehicles/equipment
 4. Elimination of duplicative buildings and site areas

Cons:
 1. Cost of windshield time from central location to work zones
 2. Lost productivity with increased drive times
 3. Doesn’t eliminate a building and site duplicity

Assumptions:
	 1.	Employee	cost	with	benefits	of	$70,000/	year	($33.65/	hr.	based	on	2,080	hrs.	per	year)
	 2.	6	MPG	for	diesel	plows
	 3.	Distance	from	Le	Center	to	Le	Sueur-	14	miles	one	way,	28	RT,	assume	45	minutes	
     total drive time
	 4.	Average	winter	events	requiring	plowing,	salt	and	sanding	is	40	per	year
	 5.	Average	cost	of	diesel	fuel	=	$2.75	per	gallon
	 6.	Plow	routes	for	Le	Sueur	-	3,	required	3	operators

Lost Operational Staff Efficiency:
	 Drive	time	to	service	area	from	Le	Center	-	3	staff	x	40	days	/	year	x	45	minutes	RT	x	twice		
	 a	day	=	10,800	minutes	/	yr.	or	180	hrs.	/	year

Operation Staff Cost Impact:
 180	hrs.	x	$33.65	=	$6,057	/	year

Operation Vehicle Impact:
 40	events	x	3	operators	x	(2	x	28	miles	(RT))	=	6,720	miles	/	
	 6	MPG	=	1,120	gallons	x	$2.75	/	gallon	=		$3,080	/	year

Total Operations and Cost Impact based on Winter Events:
	 Staff	Inefficiency	=	180	travel	hours	
	 Staff	&	Vehicle	Cost		=	$9,137	/	year

This	analysis	is	a	fraction	of	the	public	works	services.
The	services	the	highway	shops	provide	for	the	507	miles	of	road	include:
 • Snow and Ice plowing and treatment
	 •	 Maintain	193	miles	of	gravel	roads
 • Signage repair and replacement
	 •	 Mowing	&	weed	control	
 • Asphalt patching & sealing
	 •	 Roadway	&	earthwork
 • Highway striping 

Estimated Total Yearly Operations Impact based on 260 workdays:
 Staff Efficiency / Year = 540 hrs. of lost productivity  
 Lost Staff & Vehicle Operational Cost / Year = $27,411

Le Sueur Shop vs. Le Sueur 
activities from Le Center Shop

Pros:
 1. Eliminates some building and site duplicity- e.g wash 
     building
	 2.	Maintenance	can	be	completed	at	main	shop

Cons:
 1. Increased operating cost associated with windshield time
 2. Lost productivity due to travel times from Le Center to start  
     of work
 3. Some buildings and equipment would still be necessary  
	 				in	Le	Sueur-	e.g.	salt	storage,	fueling.	If	those	were	all		 	
	 				relocated	to	Le	Center,	the	operating	costs	associated	with		
	 				a	snow	event	would	increase	significantly
	 4.	The	building	at	Le	Center	would	need	to	be	enlarged	to		
	 				accommodate	the	relocated	fleet

Public Works- Central vs. Decentral

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 9/15/2015 Page 54 / 67



09/15/2015 Project #: 1136.11

Le Sueur County Facility Master Plan Study
Facilities Study

4

Le Sueur Public Works-
 Construction	Cost	 	 	 	 $2,400,000
	 Soft	Cost	 	 	 	 	 	 $			400,000
 __________________________________________
 
	 Total	Estimated	Cost	 	 	 	 $2,800,000
 *CONSTRUCTION	COST	BASED	ON	2016	ESTIMATE

Le Center Public Works-
 Construction	Cost	 	 	 	 $9,300,000
	 Soft	Cost	 	 	 	 	 	 $1,355,600
 __________________________________________
 
	 Total	Estimated	Cost	 	 	 							$10,655,600
 *CONSTRUCTION	COST	BASED	ON	2016	ESTIMATE

www.bkvgroup.com

A
rc

hi
te

ct
ur

e
In

te
ri

or
 D

es
ig

n
La

nd
sc

ap
e 

A
rc

hi
te

ct
ur

e
En

gi
ne

er
in

g

Le
 S

ue
ur

 C
o

un
ty

Pu
bl

ic
 W

o
rk

s 
Fa

ci
lit

ie
s 

St
ud

y 
07

.2
8.

20
15

  
P

R
O

JE
C

T
 N

O
. 1

13
6.

11
6

Le Sueur Public Works Site - Concept A
Scale 1:100

SALT/SANDSTORAGE(6420 SF)

H
A

Z
EL

 S
T.

DAKOTA ST.

PECK ST.

0’ 20’ 50’ 100’

N
I - Zoning (General Industrial)
Max. Building Coverage = 70%
Max. Building Height = 80 ft

NEW FUEL
ISLAND & UG 
STORAGE TANK

STORAGE BINS

WASH
EQUIPMENT
STORAGE
(7200 SF)

COVERED
STORAGE

SHOPS

LY
N

N
  A

V
E.

K
IN

G
SW

AY
 D

R
.

FUTUREADDITION(CITY ORCOUNTY)

EXISTINGCITY OWNED 
PROPERTY

EXISTINGCITY OWNED 
PROPERTY

NEW
ACCESS

PARKING (5)
TRUCK

TRUCK
TRUCK

TRUCK

BUILDING LEGEND

ADMINISTRATION

SHOPS

WASH BUILDING

FLEET STORAGE

SALT/SAND STORAGE

www.bkvgroup.com

A
rc

hi
te

ct
ur

e
In

te
ri

or
 D

es
ig

n
La

nd
sc

ap
e 

A
rc

hi
te

ct
ur

e
En

gi
ne

er
in

g

Le
 S

ue
ur

 C
o

un
ty

P
ub

lic
 W

o
rk

s 
Fa

ci
lit

ie
s 

St
ud

y 
08

.1
0.

20
15

  
P

R
O

JE
C

T
 N

O
. 1

13
6.

11
2

Le Center Public Works Site - Concept A
Scale 1:100

FUEL
ISLAND

ADMIN. 
BUILDING
(5620 SF - 
TOTAL)

AUTO/LIGHT TRUCK
STORAGE - 42 STALLS (24275 SF)

COLD
STORAGE
(12800 SF)

EXISTING
SALT/SAND
STORAGE
(5800 SF)

WASH BUILDING
(2250 SF)

DEMOLISHED BUILDING

DEMOLISHED 
BUILDING

EXISTING ACCESS 
TO IMPOUND LOT

DEMOLISHED 
BUILDING

W BRADSHAW ST.

S 
M

A
PL

E 
A

V
E.

0’ 20’ 50’ 100’

N
I-2 Industrial District
Max. Building Coverage = 60%
Max.1mpervious Coverage = 70%

SETBACK

PROPERTY LINE

TRUCK STORAGE (11 BAYS)

SIGN
SHOP

FLEET MAINTENANCE
(10300 SF)

NEW
ACCESS

EXISTING
ACCESS

EXISTING
ACCESS

PARKING
(42) STALLS

FUTURE CITY VEHICLE 
STORAGE (10 TRUCK BAYS)

W
ELD

MAINT.
SUPPORT

STORAGE
BINS

COLD STORAGE

BUILDING LEGEND

FLEET MAINTENANCE

ADMINISTRATION

SHOPS

WASH BUILDING

FLEET STORAGE

EXISTING BUILDING
(PROGRAM AS NOTED) 

EXISTING
SHERIFF’S
IMPOUND
LOT

EXISTING SEWER 
FORCE MAIN

Recommendations- Public Works

N N

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 9/15/2015 Page 55 / 67



09/15/2015 Project #: 1136.11

Le Sueur County Facility Master Plan Study
Facilities Study

5

Montgomery Public Works Site-
 Construction	Cost	 	 	 	 $150,000
	 Soft	Cost	 	 	 	 	 	 $		25,000
 __________________________________________
 
	 Total	Estimated	Cost	 	 	 	 $175,000
 *CONSTRUCTION	COST	BASED	ON	2016	ESTIMATE

Cleveland Public Works Site-
 Construction	Cost	 	 	 	 $150,000
	 Soft	Cost	 	 	 	 	 	 $		25,000
 __________________________________________
 
	 Total	Estimated	Cost	 	 	 									$175,000
 *CONSTRUCTION	COST	BASED	ON	2016	ESTIMATE

www.bkvgroup.com

A
rc

hi
te

ct
ur

e
In

te
ri

or
 D

es
ig

n
La

nd
sc

ap
e 

A
rc

hi
te

ct
ur

e
En

gi
ne

er
in

g

Le
 S

ue
ur

 C
o

un
ty

Pu
bl

ic
 W

o
rk

s 
Fa

ci
lit

ie
s 

St
ud

y 
07

.2
8.

20
15

  
P

R
O

JE
C

T
 N

O
. 1

13
6.

11
8

N

Montgomery Public Works Site - Concept
Scale 1:100

0’ 20’ 50’ 100’

4TH ST. NW

EXISTING
ACCESS

EXISTING
ACCESS

NEW
WASH BAY
(1250 SF)

EXISTING
FUEL ISLAND

YARD STORAGE
NEW
COVERED
STORAGE

EXISTING
SHOP
BUILDING

EXISTING
SALT/SAND
STORAGE

RAILROAD

PROPERTY LINE
www.bkvgroup.com

A
rc

hi
te

ct
ur

e
In

te
ri

or
 D

es
ig

n
La

nd
sc

ap
e 

A
rc

hi
te

ct
ur

e
En

gi
ne

er
in

g

Le
 S

ue
ur

 C
o

un
ty

Pu
bl

ic
 W

o
rk

s 
Fa

ci
lit

ie
s 

St
ud

y 
07

.2
8.

20
15

  
P

R
O

JE
C

T
 N

O
. 1

13
6.

11
9

0’ 20’ 50’ 100’

N

Cleveland Public Works Site - Concept
Scale 1:100

DODD RD.

EXISTING
ACCESS

EXISTING
FUEL ISLAND

EXISTING
SHOP
BUILDING

EXISTING
SALT/SAND
STORAGE

NEW
COVERED
STORAGE

NEW
WASH BAY
(1250 SF)

PROPERTY LINEEXISTING EASEMENT ACCESS

Recommendations- Public Works

N

N

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 9/15/2015 Page 56 / 67



09/15/2015 Project #: 1136.11

Le Sueur County Facility Master Plan Study
Facilities Study

6
Gevernment Services/ LEC/ Jail

CONCEPT	A

CONCEPT	C

CONCEPT	B

CONCEPT	D

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 9/15/2015 Page 57 / 67



09/15/2015 Project #: 1136.11

Le Sueur County Facility Master Plan Study
Facilities Study

7

Concept C (LEC/JAIL) - NOT RECOMMENDED
 
 Construction	Cost	 	 	 	 $10,376,000
	 Soft	Cost	 	 	 	 	 	 $		1,705,000	
 __________________________________________
 
	 Total	Estimated	Cost	 	 	 	 $12,081,000
 *NOTE:	DOES	NOT	INCLUDE	LEC	GARAGE
 *CONSTRUCTION	COST	BASED	ON	2016	ESTIMATE

Concept D (LEC/JAIL) - RECOMMENDED
 Construction	Cost	 	 	 	 $9,400,000
	 Soft	Cost	 	 	 	 	 	 $1,562,000	
 __________________________________________
 
	 Total	Estimated	Cost	 	 	 	 $10,962,000
 *NOTE:	DOES	NOT	INCLUDE	LEC	GARAGE
 *CONSTRUCTION	COST	BASED	ON	2016	ESTIMATE

Recommendation- Jail/ LEC

CONCEPT	C CONCEPT	D

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 9/15/2015 Page 58 / 67



09/15/2015 Project #: 1136.11

Le Sueur County Facility Master Plan Study
Facilities Study

8
Government Services/ LEC/ Jail

Recommended Concept

Lower Level

Government Center Addition-

 Construction	Cost	 	 	 	 $6,900,000
	 Soft	Cost	 	 	 	 	 	 $1,000,000
 __________________________________________
 
	 Total	Estimated	Cost	 	 	 	 $7,900,000
 *NOTE:	DOES	NOT	INCLUDE	HUMAN	SERVICES	REMODELING

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 9/15/2015 Page 59 / 67



09/15/2015 Project #: 1136.11

Le Sueur County Facility Master Plan Study
Facilities Study

9
Government Services/ LEC/ Jail

Recommended Concept

First Level

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 9/15/2015 Page 60 / 67



09/15/2015 Project #: 1136.11

Le Sueur County Facility Master Plan Study
Facilities Study

10
Government Services/ LEC/ Jail

Recommended Concept

Second Level

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 9/15/2015 Page 61 / 67



09/15/2015 Project #: 1136.11

Le Sueur County Facility Master Plan Study
Facilities Study

11
Government Services/ LEC/ Jail

Recommended Concept

Third Level

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 9/15/2015 Page 62 / 67



09/15/2015 Project #: 1136.11

Le Sueur County Facility Master Plan Study
Facilities Study

12
Parking Analysis

Current Off Street County Parking
     1-  24 spaces in the west lot
					2-		38	spaces	in	East	Sharon	Street
     3-  Approx. 14 spaces in the LEC lot
     4-  33 spaces off West Sharon
 
	 	Total	Current	Parking	=	109

Long Range Additional Parking 
Impacts
•	 Moving	environmental	services	to			
	 the	County	Government	campus
• Increase of employees over time 
	 (in	15	years	there	could	be	198	total		
	 employees	for	the	17	departments		
	 at	the	government	center	and		40	at		
	 the	LEC	for	a	total	of	238)
• New Jail / LEC construction in East  
 Sharon Street

Potential Off Street Parking Need
150	to	200	(not	including	LEC)

A: City Public Parking Lot
33 cars

B: Private Property
107	cars

C: Church Property
58	cars

D: City Property
105	cars

E: County Property
81	cars

*Existing	Courthouse	Property-	76	cars

A

B

CD

E

Existing 
Courthouse

1

2
34

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 9/15/2015 Page 63 / 67



09/15/2015 Project #: 1136.11

Le Sueur County Facility Master Plan Study
Facilities Study

13
Project Schedules

Task	Name Start Finish

Le Sueur County: Proposed Implementation 
Schedule 

Mon	3/2/15 Mon	3/2/15

Project 1:                                                                     
Government Center - Human Services Remodeling

Mon	4/27/15 Thu	6/4/15

4H	Building	Temporary	Remodeling Mon	10/12/15 Fri	11/13/15

Design	Phase	(Finalize	Design	&	Confirm	Budget) Mon	9/14/15 Thu	10/1/15

Construction Document Phase Fri	10/2/15 Fri	10/23/15

Bidding & Award Phase Mon	10/26/15 Mon	12/14/15

Human Services Temporary Move Mon	11/30/15 Wed	12/9/15

Construction Phase Mon	12/14/15 Fri	4/15/16

Human Services Moves Back into Remodeled Area Mon	4/18/16 Tue	4/26/16

Tue	11/22/11 Tue	11/22/11

Project 2:                                                                             
Le Sueur Public Works 

Mon	4/6/15 Wed	4/22/15

Schematic	Design	Phase	(Finalize	Design	&	Confirm	Budget) Mon	10/5/15 Fri	10/30/15

Design Development & Construction Document Phases Mon	11/2/15 Fri	2/19/16

Bidding & Award Phase Mon	2/22/16 Mon	4/11/16

Construction Phase Mon	4/11/16 Fri	3/17/17

Owner Occupancy Sun	4/2/17 Sun	4/2/17

Tue	11/22/11 Tue	11/22/11

Project 3:                                                                              
 Government Center - Addition 

Mon	1/18/16 Thu	3/10/16

Schematic	Design	Phase	(Finalize	Design	&	Confirm	Budget) Mon	6/6/16 Fri	8/26/16

Design Development & Construction Document Phases Mon	8/29/16 Fri	2/24/17

Bidding & Award Phase Mon	2/27/17 Mon	4/17/17

Phase	1	-	New	North	Addition,	New	Secure	Entry	and	Exterior	Improvements	 Mon	4/17/17 Fri	3/9/18

Move Public Health and other departments into 1st, 2nd and 3rd Floors of 
Addition

Mon	3/19/18 Fri	4/6/18

Phase	2	-	Remodeling	Existing 1st and 3rd Levels Mon	4/16/18 Fri	6/22/18

Move Departments into Remolded Areas Mon	6/25/18 Mon	7/9/18

Phase	3	-	Remodeling	Existing	2nd	Level Mon	7/16/18 Fri	9/21/18

Move Departments into Remodeled Areas Mon	9/24/18 Fri	10/12/18

Tue	11/22/11 Tue	11/22/11

Project 4:                                                                              
Le Center Public Works Facility 

Mon	7/27/15 Mon	12/7/15

Schematic	Design	Phase	(Finalize	Design	&	Confirm	Budget) Mon	4/17/17 Mon	7/17/17

Design Development & Construction Document Phases Mon	7/24/17 Fri	2/23/18

Bidding Phase Mon	2/26/18 Mon	4/9/18

Construction Phase Mon	4/23/18 Fri	6/7/19

Owner Occupancy Mon	6/17/19 Fri	6/28/19

Project 5:                                                                              
 New Jail  

Mon	3/24/14 Thu	5/15/14

Schematic	Design	Phase	(Finalize	Design	&	Confirm	Budget) Mon	7/27/20 Fri	9/25/20

Design Development & Construction Document Phases Mon	9/28/20 Fri	2/19/21

Bidding & Award Phase Mon	2/22/21 Fri	4/30/21

Construction Phase Mon	5/3/21 Fri	7/15/22

Owner Occupancy Mon	7/25/22 Mon	8/8/22

4/2

AugSepOctNovDecJanFebMarAprMayJun Jul AugSepOctNovDecJanFebMarAprMayJun Jul AugSepOctNovDecJanFebMarAprMayJun Jul AugSepOctNovDecJanFebMarAprMayJun Jul AugSepOctNovDecJanFebMarAprMayJun Jul AugSepOctNovDecJanFebMarAprMayJun Jul AugSepOctNovDecJanFebMarAprMayJun Jul Au
2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022

Task

Split

Milestone

Summary

Project Summary

External	Tasks

External	Milestone

Inactive	Milestone

Inactive Summary

Manual	Task

Duration-only

Manual	Summary	Rollup

Manual	Summary

Start-only

Finish-only

External	Tasks

External	Milestone

Progress

Deadline

Le Sueur County 
Government Master Plan Study

 Proposed ImplementationSchedule
September	15,	2015

Page 1

Project:	Le	Sueur	County	Master	Plann
Date:	September	15,	2015

CONSTRUCTION

CONSTRUCTION

CONSTRUCTION

CONSTRUCTION

CONSTRUCTION

CONSTRUCTION

CONSTRUCTION

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 9/15/2015 Page 64 / 67



Le Sueur County, MN
Tuesday, September 15, 2015

Board Meeting

Item 13

Future Meetings

Staff Contact: 

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 9/15/2015 Page 65 / 67



Future Meetings 2015

September 15, 2015 Board Meeting, 9:00 a.m.
*Set Preliminary Levy, 10:00 a.m.
*BKV work session after meeing

September 17, 2015 Board of Adjustment Meeting, 3:00 p.m.
Environmental Services Building

September 22, 2015 Board Meeting, 9:00 a.m.

September 29, 2015 No Board Meeting

October 6, 2015 Board Meeting, 9:00 a.m.

October 8, 2015 P&Z Meeting, 7:00 p.m. 
Environmental Services Building

October 13, 2015 No Board Meeting

October 15, 2015 Board of Adjustment Meeting, 3:00 p.m.
Environmental Services Building

October 20, 2015 Board Meeting, 9:00 a.m.

October 27, 2015 Board Meeting, 9:00 a.m.
*Nicollet/Le SueurJoint Meeting, 12:00 in the President's 
Dining Room at the Student Center at Gustavus College 
in St. Peter

November 3, 2015 Board Meeting, 9:00 a.m.

November 10, 2015 No Board Meeting

November 11, 2015 Offices closed for Veteran’s Day

November 12, 2015 P&Z Meeting, 7:00 p.m. 

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 9/15/2015 Page 66 / 67



Environmental Services Building

November 17, 2015 Board Meeting, 9:00 a.m.

November 17, 2015 Le Sueur – Waseca Community Health Board (CHB)
1:30pm in the Waterville City Council Chambers

November 19, 2015 Board of Adjustment Meeting, 3:00 p.m.
Environmental Services Building

November 24, 2015 Board Meeting, 9:00 a.m.

November 26-27, 2015 Offices Closed for Thanksgiving

December 1, 2015 Board Meeting, 9:00 a.m.

December 8, 2015 No Board Meeting

December 10, 2015 P&Z Meeting, 7:00 p.m. 
Environmental Services Building

December 15, 2015 Board Meeting, 4:30 p.m.

December 22, 2015 Board Meeting, 9:00 a.m.

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 9/15/2015 Page 67 / 67


